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L.C.W., Inc. d/b/a Kwik Lube, Docket No. 03·2010-0043

In the Matter of:

BEFORE THE UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGE

REGION III

Administrative omplaint,
Compliance Ord r and Notice of
Right to Request a Hearing

L.C.W. Inc., d/b/a KWIK LUBE
U.S. EPA Docke No.
RCRAc03-2010- 043

Respondent,

1522 Third Avenue
Huntington, WV 25701

Facility,

Proceeding unde I Section 9006
of the Resource I onservation and '.
Recovery Act, as amended,
42 U.S.C. § 6991e

I, INTRODUCTION

This Administrative Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing
("Complaint") is issued pursuant to the authority vested in the Admin~strator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA" or the "Agency") by Sectiolfl9006 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, commonly referred to as the Resource Conservation an~ Recovery Act of 1976, as '
amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (c911ectively "RCRA"), 42
U.S.C. § 6991e, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing th1 Administrative Assessment
of Civil Penalties and the Revocationfferrnination or Suspension of Pfrmits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22
("Consolidated Rules of Practice"), a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint (Enclosure

"A"). l
The Director of the Land and Chemicals Division of EPA Reg/on III ("Complainant"),

hereby notifies L.C.W., Inc. ("Respondent") that EPA has reason to b~lieve that Respondent has
violated Subtitle I of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6991-699Ii, and the State of West Virginia's federally
authorized underground storage tank program with respect to the unddrground storage tanks at
Respondent's facility located at 1522 Third Avenue, Huntington, West Virginia (the "Facility").
Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e, authorizes EPA to take edforcement action, including
issuing a compliance order or assessing a civil penalty, whenever it is ~eterrnined that a person is
in violation of any requirement of RCRA Subtitle I, EPA's regulation~ thereunder, or any
regulation of a state underground storage tank program which has been authorized by EPA.

1



L.C.W., Inc. d/b/a iWik Lube, Docket No. 03-2010-0043

On April 10, 1996, pursuant to Section 9004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991c, and 40 C.F.R.
Part 281, Subpart A, the State of West Virginia was granted final aU~Orization to administer a
state underground storage tank management program in lieu of the Fe~eral underground storage
tank management program established under Subtitle I of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6991-6991 i. The
authorization of West Virginia's underground storage tank program b6carne effective on July I,
1996. The provisions of West Virginia's authorized underground stor~ge tank program regulations,
set forth in WVUSTR, which incorporate by reference the federal undFrground storage tank
program regulations set forth at 40 C.F .R. Part 280 (1995 ed.), have bycome requirements of
Subtitle I ofRCRA and are, accordingly, enforceable by EPA pursuant to Section 9006 of RCRA,
42 U.S.c. § 6991e. A copy of the authorized WVUSTR, Parts 33-30-11 through 33-30-4.6, is
enclosed with this Complaint (Enclosure "B"). The authorized West ~irginia underground storage
tank regulations are cited as the legal basis for EPA's Complaint alon1 with the incorporated
provisions of the federal regulations.

Section 9006(d) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 699Ie(d), authorizes ErA to assess a civil penalty
against any owner or operator of an underground storage tank who fails to comply with, inter alia,
any requirement or standard promulgated under Section 9003 of RCAA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991b, (40
C.F .R. Part 280) or any requirement or standard of a State undergroun~ storage tank program that
has been approved by EPA pursuant to Section 9004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991c.

EPA has given the State of West Virginia notice of the issuanc~ of this Complaint in
accordance with Section 9006(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 699 Ie(a)(l)'

In support of this Complaint, the Complainant makes the follo~ing allegations, findings of
fact and conclusions oflaw:. l

II. COMPLAINT
Findings of Facts and Conclusions of La,

I
I. The United States Environmental Protection Agency - Region III ("EPA" or the "Region")

and EPA's Office of Administrative Law Judges have jurisdiction over this matter pursuant
to Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e, 40 C.F.R. § 280140 C.F.R. §§ 22. I(a) (4),
and 22. I(a) (4) (c).

2. At all times relevant to this Complaint, L.C.W., Inc. has been West Virginia corporation
doing business as Kwik Lube in the State of West Virginia.

3.

4.

Respondent is a "person" as defined in Section 9001(5) ofRC ,42 U.S.C. § 6991(5), and
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referenct 40 C.F.R. § 280.12.

At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent has been t~e "owner" and "operator,"
as those terms are defined in Section 9001(3) and (4) of RCRAl42 U.S.C. § 6991(3) and
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(4), and WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by leference 40 C.F.R.
I

§ 280.12, of the "underground storage tanks" ("USTs") and "U~T systems" as those terms
are defined in Section 9001(10) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991 (Hl), and WVUSTR Section

I

33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 280.112, located at 1522 Third
Avenue, Huntington, West Virginia, 2570 I(the "Facility").

On November 7,2007, an EPA representative conducted a Compliance Evaluation
Inspection ("CEl") of the Facility pursuant to Section 9005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991d.

At the time of the November 7, 2007 CEl, and at all times rele ant to the applicable
violations alleged herein, three (3) USTs, as described in the fl lowing subparagraphs,
were located at the Facility:

A.

B.

A two thousand (2,000) gallon steel tank that w installed on or about May
I, 1987 and that, at all times relevant hereto, roJtinely contained used oil, a
"regulated substance" as that term isdefined in Section 900 I (7) of RCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 6991 (7), and WVUSTR Section 33130-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.12 (hereinafter "UST No. I"),
and

A two thousand (2,000) gallon steel tank that was installed on or about May
I, 1987 and that, at all times relevant hereto, ro~tinely contained oil, a
"regulated substance" as that term is defined in jection 900 I(7) ofRCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 6991(7), and WVUSTR Section 33 30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.12 (hreinafter "UST No.2").

A two thousand gallon steel tank that was installed on or about May I,
1987, and that all times relevant hereto, routinel~ contained water. This
tank had previously been used to store "regulated substance" as that term is
defined in Section 9001(7) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. ~ 6991(7), and WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referJnce 40 C.F.R. § 280.12
(hereinafter "UST No.3.").

7.

8.

At all times relevant to the applicable violations alleged herein, UST No. I and UST No.2
have been "petroleum UST systems" and "existing UST systems" as these terms are
defined in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates btreference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280. 12.

USTs Nos. I and 2 are and were, at all times relevant to applica Ie violations alleged in
this Complaint, used to store "regulated substance(s)" at ResporJdent's Facility, as defined
in Section 9001(7) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991(7), and WVUS+R Section 33-30-2.2.1
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 280.12, and have nbt been "empty" as that
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9.

10.

II.

12.
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term is defined at WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incoJorates by reference 40
C.f.R. § 280.70(a). I

. I
Pursuant to RCRA Section 9005, 42 U.S.c. § 6991d, on Janu\uy 2, 2008 and May 9, 2008,
EPA issued Information Requests to Respondent concerning iiis petroleum UST systems at
the Facility.

COUNT I
(Failure to perform release detection on USTs Nos. I and 2)

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 9 of the Complaint arrl incorporated herein by
reference.

Pursuant to WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporate by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 280.40(a) and (c), owners and operators of existing UST sys~ems must provide a method
or combination of methods of release detection monitoring thdt meets the requirements

described therein. J'
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referen e 40 C.F.R. § 280.4I(a)
provides, in pertinent part, that USTs shall be monitored at lea~t every 30 days for releases
using one of the methods listed in WVUSTR Section 33_30_2J.I which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(d) through (h), except that:

(I) UST systems that meet the performance stand ds in WVUSTR Section 33
30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 280.20 (Performance
Standards for New UST Systems) or WVUSTRi Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (~pgrading of Existing UST
Systems), and the monthly inventory control re~uirements in WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by refe~ence 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(a)
or (b) (Inventory Control or Manual Tank Gau~ing),may use tank tightness
testing, conducted in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(c) (Tank Tightness Test), at
least every 5 years until December 22, 1998, or until 10 years after the UST
is installed or upgraded under WVUSTR sectiO

r
33-30-2.2.1 which .

incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21(b) (Tank Upgrading
Requirements); and

(2) UST systems that do not meet the performance standards in WVUSTR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referlFnce 40 C.F.R. § 280.20
(Performance Standards for New UST Systems~ or WVUSTR Section 33
30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.~.R. § 280.21 (Upgrading of
Existing UST Systems), may use monthly inve tory controls, conducted in
accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
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(3)

13.

14.

IS.

16.

17.

18.
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reference 40 C.F.R. § 280A3(a) or (b) (lnventok Control or Manual Tank
Gauging) and annual tank tightness testing, conducted in accordance with
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorpor~tes by reference 40 C.F .R.
§ 280A3(c) (Tank Tightness Test) until December 22, 1998, when the tank
must be upgraded under WVUSTR Section 33~30-2.2.1 .which incorporates
by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.21 (Tank UpgradIng ReqUIrements) or
permanently closed under WVUSTR Section 3B-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71; Jnd

Tanks with a capacity of 550 gallonsor less mJy use weekly tank gauging,
conducted in accordance with WVUSTR Secti~n 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.43(b~.

\

From September 12,2006 to November 7, 2007, no method ofre1ease detection was used
by Respondent for USTs Nos. 1 and 2. I

From September 12,2006 to November 7, 2007, Respondent'~ USTs Nos. I and 2 at the
Facility were not monitored in compliance with any of the methods set forth in WVUSlR
Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R! § 280.41 (a)(1)-(3) and/or
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referenge 40 C.F.R. § 280A3(d)-(h).

Respondent's acts and/or omissions as alleged in Paragraphs 1~ and 14, above, constitute
violations by Respondent ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280AO(a) and (c) and WVUSTR Sectio 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280,41(a).

COUNT II
(Failure to test cathodic protection system on USTs Nls. 1, 2 and 3)

Paragraphs I through 15 of this Complaint are incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.

WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referenc~ 40 C.F.R. § 280.31(b)(I),
provides that all UST systems equipped with cathodic protecti'!ll system must be tested for
proper operation within 6 months of installation and at least 31ears thereafter by a
qualified cathodic protection tester.

USTs Nos. I through 3 are and were, at the time of the violati Ins alleged herein, "steel
UST systems with corrosion protection" and, Tanks I and 2, were used to store regulated
substances within the meaning ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2..1 which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.31.
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19. A test of the cathodic protection system for USTs Nos. 1 through 3 was conducted on July
10,2004. From at least July 11,2007 until June 27, 2008, Respondent failed to conduct a
test ofthe cathodic protection system as required by WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 280.31 (b)( I), for the USTs Nos. I ,2 and 3 at the
Facility.

20. Respondent's act and/or omission as alleged in Paragraph 19, above, constitute violations
by Respondent ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40
C.F,R. § 280.31(b)(l).

COUNT III
(Failure to Provide Financial Assurance)

21. The allegations in Paragraphs I through 20, above, are incorporated herein by reference as
though fully set forth at length hereill

22. WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. §§ 280.90
through 280.112, provides, in pertinent part, that owners and operators of petroleum UST
systems are required, with exceptions not relevant hereto, to demonstrate financial
responsibility for taking corrective action and for compensating third parties for bodily
injury and property damage caused by accidental releases arising from the operation of
petroleum USTs. Subject to the limitations set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 280.94, incorporated
by reference into WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1, an owner or operator may demonstrate
financial responsibility using any of the mechanisms set forth in 40 C.F .R. §§ 280.95
through 280.103.

23. At the time of the CEI on November 7, 2007, Respondent did not have financial
responsibility for USTs Nos. I through 3 by any of the methods set forth in 40 C.F.R.
§§ 280. 95 through 280.103, which are incorporated by reference into WVUSTR Section
33-30-2.2.1.

24. Respondent's act and/or omission as alleged in Paragraph 23, above, constitutes a violation
by Respondent of WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1, which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. §§ 280.95 through 280103.

COUNT IV
(Failure to Respond to an Information Request Letter)

25. The allegations in Paragraphs I though 24, above, are incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth at length herein.
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Section 9005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991d, provides that for t~e purposes of, inter alia,
enforcing the provisions of RCRA Subtitle I, 42 U.S.C. §§ 69911 et seq., any owner or
operator of an UST shall furnish infonnation regarding such U8T to a duly designated
officer, employee or representative of the EPA, or a duly desighated officer, employee or
representative of a State acting pursuant to Section 9003(h)(7) pf RCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6991 b (h)(7), upon request of such officer, employee or representative.

WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1, which incorporates by referen~e 40 C.F.R. § 280.34,
requires, in pertinent part, owners and operators to cooperate fillly with requests for
document submission, testing and monitoring by the owner and operator pursuant to
Section 9005 of Subtitle [ofRCRA. 1
EPA issued an infonnation request letter ("IRL") to Responde t pursuant to Section 9005
of Subtitle I of RCRA on January 2, 2008 ("January 2, 2008 If")'

The January 2, 2008 IRL requested Respondent to submit the fbllowing infonnation to
EPA: I) the name and address of the owner for the UST systecls at the Facility; 2) the
name and address of the owner of the Facility property; 3) the ~ame and address of each
operator of the UST systems at the Facility; and 4) documentation, as specified in the
January 2, 2008 IRL, demonstrating the Facility's compliance rth the UST regulations.

The January 2, 2008 IRL specifically required that any sUbmis~ions be certified by
Respondent as true, accurate and complete. I

In response to EPA's January 2, 2008 IRL, Respondent submitted an undated and
I

uncertified letter to EPA consisting ofa statement that Respondent had purchased the
I

Facility on December 8,2004 and enclosed an UST certificate issued by the State of West
Virginia and a December 2,2005 inspection report from the St<lte of West Virginia RCRA
Subtitle C hazardous waste inspection of the Facility. ~

EPA issued an IRL to Respondent pursuant to Section 9005 of ubtitle I ofRCRA on May
9,2008 ("May 9, 2008 IRL").

The May 9, 2008 IRL requested Respondent to submit infonn~lion to EPA for, among
other things, I) the name and address of the owner for the USTI systems at the Facility; 2)
the name and address of the owner of the Facility property; 3) ~he name and address of
each operator of the UST systems at the Facility; and 4) docu1entation, as specified in the
May 9, 2008 IRL, demonstrating the Facility's compliance with the UST regulations.

The May 9, 2008 IRL specifically required that any sUbmissiJs be certified by .
Respondent as true, accurate and complete. I

I
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In response to EPA's May 9,2008 IRL,Respondent submitted Ilan undated and uncertified
handwritten note to EPA dated June 3, 2008 stating "I contacter Corrosion Technical
Services in West Chester, OH to get the tanks tested."

As of the date of this Complaint, Respondent has not furnishedl information in response to
the January 8,2008 and May 9,2008 IRL;, to EPA, specifically: 1) the name and address
of the owner for the UST systems at the Facility; 2) the name ard address of each operator
of the UST systems at the Facility; and documentation, as specified in the January 8,2008
IRL and May 9, 2008 IRL, demonstrating the Facility's complibce with the UST
regulations. '

Respondent's act andl~r omission as alleged in Paragraph 36, apove, constitutes a .violation
by Respondent ofSectIOn 9005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991d ard WVUSTR SectIOn 33
30-2.2.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 280.34.

III. COMPLIANCE ORDER

Pursuant to Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e, RespoJdent is hereby ordered to:

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this comPliancel Order, comply with the
release detection requirements ofWVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2jl which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.40(a) and (c), for all UST systems lopated at the Facility subject
to this Complaint or close such UST systems in accordance wit~ WVUSTR Section 33-30-
2.2.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71. I

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this comPliance~order,complete measures
to ensure that the corrosion protection systems for USTs Nos. I, 2 and 3 at the Facility are
tested for proper operation by a qualified cathodic protection te ter in accordance with
WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referencJ 40 C.F.R. § 280.31 (b)(I)
or close such UST systems in accordance with WVUSTR Sectibn 33-30-2.2. I which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 280.71.

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this comPliancaorder, demonstrate
compliance with the financial responsibility requirements for al UST systems located at
the Facility in accordance with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2. I, which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. §§ 280.90 through 280.112 or close such ST systems in accordance
with WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 which incorporates by referenCe 40 C.F.R. § 280.71.

If Respondent elects to close any or all of the USTs subject to this Compliance Order, it
I
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43.
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must submit to EPA, within fifteen (15) calendar days after the effective date of this
Compliance Order, a notice of intent to permanently close, idehtifying which UST(s) it
intends to close. Such notice shall be sent to Mr. Clark Cono~F.r at the address set forth
below. A copy of such notice shall also be sent to WVDEQ atlthe address set forth below.

Within seventy-five (75) days of the effective date of this ConJpliance Order, submit to
EPA a report which documents and certifies Respondent's cOl1pliance with the terms of
this Compliance Order.

Any notice, report, certification, data presentation, or other document submitted by
Respondent pursuant to this Compliance Order which discussd~, describes, demonstrates,
supports any finding or makes any representation concerning ~espondent's compliance or
noncompliance with any requirement of this Compliance Order shall be certified by a
responsible corporate officer of Respondent.

The certification required above shall be in the following form,

I certify that the information contained in or accompan~ing this [type of
submission] is true, accurate, and complete. As to [theifuose] identified
portions of this [type of submission] for which I canno~personally verify
[its/their] accuracy, I certify under penalty oflaw that this [type of
submission] and all attachments were prepared in accotpance with a system
designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the
information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the per~on or persons who
manage the system, or those persons directly responsibl,e for gathering the
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that thJre are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including thJ possibility of fines
and imprisonment for knowing violations.

I.

Signature:
Name:
Title:

All documents and reports to be submitted purs I ant to this Compliance
Order shaH be sent to the following persons and shall be sent certified mail,
return receipt requested to the attention of:

Mr. Clark Conover
Environmental Scientist
USEPA Region III
1060 Chapline Street-Suite 303
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Wheeling, WV 26003

and

Joyce A. Howell
Sr. Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC30)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - RegiOj' III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 I

2. One copy of all documents submitted to EPA sHall also be sent by regular
mail to the attention of: I

I

Tom Fisher
Hazardous Waste and UST Program Manager
Division of Water & Waste Management
West Virginia Department of Environmental P~otection
601 57th Street, SE
Charleston, WV 25304-2345

44. . If activities undertaken by the Respondent in connection with this Compliance Order or
otherwise indicate that a release of a regulated substance from by UST at the Facility may
have occurred, Respondent may be required to undertake correptive action pursuant to
applicable regulations in WVUSTR Section 33-30-2.2.1 whichl incorporates by reference
40 C.F.R. Part 280, Subpart F.

Respondent is hereby notified that failure to comply with any Jfthe terms of this
Compliance Order may subject it to imposition of a civil penallY of up to $37,500

,

for each day of continued noncompliance, pursuant to Section 9006(a)(3) ofRCRA, 42
,

U.S.C. § 699Ie(a)(3), the Debt Collection Improvement Act o~ 1996 ("DCIA"), and the
subsequent Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment RuleS

l
, 61 Fed. Reg. 69,360

(December 31,1996),69 Fed. Reg. 7121,7126 (February 13,2004), and 73 Fed. Reg.
75,340 (December 11,2008) codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 19 (EnilOSure "D" "E" and "F").

The term "days" as used herein shall mean calendar days unless specified otherwise.

I

IV. PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY I

Section 9006(d)(2) ofRCRA, 42 U.s.C. § 699Ie(d)(2), providJs, in relevant part, that any
owner or operator of an underground storage tank who fails to comply 'I with any requirement or
standard promulgated by EPA under Section 9003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.q. § 6991c, or that is part of
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an authorized state underground storage tank program shall be liable f4r a civil penalty not to
exceed $10,000 for each tank for each day of violation. In accordancelwith the Adjustment of
Civil Monetary Penalties for Inflation, promulgated pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement
Act of 1996 and codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, al1 violations ofRCRA ISection 9006(d)(2), 42
U.S.C. § 699Ie(d)(2), occurring on or before March 15, 2004 are subj1ct to a 10% increase for
inflation, and violations occurring after March 15,2004 and before Jlll)uary 12,2009 are subject
to a 17.23% increase for inflation, not to exceed $11,000 per violation Iper day, and all violations
occurring after January 12,2009 are subject to an additional increase for inflation, not to exceed
$16,000 per day. (Enclosure "F"). For purposes of detennining the amount of any penalty to be
assessed, Section 9006(c) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6991e(c), requires EtA to take into account the
seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts to comply with re applicable requirements.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(a)(4)(ii), Complainant is not pr0l'0sing a specific penalty at
this time, but will do so at a later date after an exchange of infonnation has occurred. See 40
C.F.R. § 22.19(a)(4).

To develop a proposed penalty for the violations alleged in thisl Complaint, EPA will take
into account the particular facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to EPA's

I

November 1990 U.S. EPA Penalty Guidance for Violations ofUST Regulations ("UST Penalty
GUidance") (Enclosure "C"), the Adjustment of Civil Monetary Penaltibs for Inflation, 40 C.F.R.
Part 19 (Enclosure "D"), and Modifications to EPA Penalty Policies to Ilmplement the Civil

,

Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule (Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act of
1996, Effective October I, 2004) (September 21,2004) (Enclosure "E"i). These policies provide a
rational, consistent and equitable methodology for applying the statutofy penalty factors
enumerated above to particular cases. As a basis for calculating a specific penalty pursuant to 40
C.F.R. § 22.19(a)(4), Complainant will also consider, among other fadors, Respondent's ability to
pay a civil penalty. The burden of raising and demonstrating an inabillty to pay rests with the
Respondent. In addition, to the extent that facts and circumstances unKnown to Complainant at
the time of issuance of this Complaint become known after the Compl,int is issued; such facts
and circumstances may also be considered as a basis for adjusting a Citl penalty.

This Complaint does not constitute a "demand" as that tenn is ~efined in the Equal Access
to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. 14(a)(4)(Ii), an explanation of the
number and severity of the violations al1eged in this Complaint is set f&rth below.

I

Penalty Explanation I

Count I -Failure to provide release detection for USTs.

The "potential for harm" for this violation is "major." Given that USTs are, by definition,
underground, it is critically important that facility owners and operator~ utilize effective methods

I

of detecting releases from such tanks. The prevention and detection of leaks are the cornerstones

11 I
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of the UST regulatory program. Respondent's failure to use an acceprble method of release
detection created the possibility of a leak going undetected and harming human health or the
environment. II

. The "extent of deviation" for this violation is "major." Failurelto monitor an UST for
releases at least every 30 days using an allowable method of release detection typically constitutes
a "major" deviation from the requirements of the ReRA regulatory prbgram. In this case,
Respondent did not monitor at all for a period of years.

Count II -Failure to test cathodic protection system.

The "potential for harm" for this violation is "minor" since the lUSTs at Respondent's
Facility contained a limited amount of regulated substances. The pUlJ!ose of cathodic protection

I

testing is to ensure that releases due to corrosion are prevented for as long as the steel UST system
is used to store regulated substances. Respondent was eleven months late in performing the
triennial test.

The "extent ofdeviation" for this violation is "moderate" since a test was performed,
however the test was overdue by eleven months. I

Count III -Failure to comply with financial responsibility reguirJments.
I

The "potential for harm" for this violation is "moderate." Finabcial assurances are a key
element of the UST regulatory system, ensuring that there are adequa¥ resources available to
properly address any releases which have occurred or will occur in the future that may cause
significant adverse effects to the environment and the regulatory progfam.

I

The "extent ofdeviation" for this violation is "major." Under ~e UST Penalty Policy, the
failure to provide financial assurances is a substantial deviation from je regulatory program.

Count IV -Failure to Respond to an Information Request Letter

EPA does not propose a penalty for this violation.

V. NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REQUEST A H~t"RING
I

Respondent may request a hearing before an EPA AdministratIve Law Judge and at such
hearing may contest any material fact upon which the Complaint is baked, contest the
appropriateness of any compliance order or proposed penalty, and/or dssert that Respondent is
entitled to judgment as a matter of law. To request a hearing, Respondent must file a written
answer ("Answer") within thirty (30) days after service of this ComplJint. The Answer should
clearly and directly admit, deny or explain each of the factual allegati~ns contained in this

12 I
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Complaint of which Respondent has any knowledge. Where Respondclnt has no knowledge of a
particular factual allegation and so states, such a statement is deemed ~ be a denial of the
allegation. The Answer should contain: (I) the circumstances or argwvents which are alleged to
constitute the grounds of any defense; (2) the facts which Respondent disputes; (3) the basis for
opposing any proposed relief; and (4) a statement of whether a hearing lis requested. All material
facts not denied in the Answer will be considered to be admitted. I

Failure of the Respondent to admit. deny or explain any material allegation in the
Complaint shall constitute an admission by Respondent of such allegation. Failure to Answer
may result in the filing of a Motion for Default Order and the possible issuance of a Default Order
imposing the penalties proposed herein without further proceedings. II

Any hearing requested and granted will be conducted in accordance with the Consolidated
Rules, a copy of which has been enclosed with this Complaint (Encloske "A"). Respondent must
send any Answer and request for a hearing to the attention of: I

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street I

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029.

In addition, please send a copy ofany Answer and/or request for a heJ.ng to the attention of:

Joyce A. Howell
Sr. Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029.

VI. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

Complainant encourages settlement of this proceeding at any time after issuance of the
Complaint if such settlement is consistent with the provisions and obje~tives of RCRA. Whether
or not a hearing is requested, Respondent may request a settlement conference with the
Complainant to discuss the allegations of the Complaint, and the amouht of the proposed
civil penalty.

A REQUEST FOR A SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE DOES NOT RELIEVE THE RESPONDENT OF ITS

RESPONSIBILITY TO FILE A TIMELY ANSWER. I

In the event settlement is reached, its terms shall be expressed if a written Consent
Agreement prepared by Complainant, signed by the parties, and incorpIDrated into a Final Order

13
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signed by the Regional Administrator or his designee. The execution ~f such a Consent
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to contest me allegations of the
Complaint and its right to appeal the proposed Final Order accompan~ing the Consent Agreement.

. I

If you wish to arrange a settlement conference, please contact ~oyce Howell, Senior
Assistant Regional Counsel, at (215) 814-2644 prior to the expiration pfthe thirty (30) day period
following service of this Complaint. Once again, however, such a request for a settlement
conference does not relieve Respondent of its responsibility to file an fnswer within thirty (30)
days following service ofthis Complaint. I

Please note that the Quick Resolution settlement procedures sef forth in 40 C.F.R. § 22.18
do not apply to this proceeding because the Complaint seeks a compliflce order. See 40 C.F.R.
§22.18(a)(I). . I

VII. SEPARATION OF FUNCTIONS AND EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS

The following Agency officers, and the staffs thereof, are desiJnated as the trial staff to
represent the Agency as the party in this case: the Region 111 Office of Regional Counsel, the
Region 1Il Land and Chemicals Division, and the Office of the EPA Aksistant Administrator for
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance. Commencing from the datellofissuance of this
Complaint until issuance of a final agency decision in this case, neither the Administrator,
members of the Environmental Appeals Board, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator, nor
Regional Judicial Officer, may have an ex parte communication with tpe trial staff or the merits of
any issue involved in this proceeding. Please be advised that the Consplidated Rules prohibit any
ex parte discussion of the merits of a case with, among others, the Administrator, members of the
Environmental Appeals Board, the Presiding Officer, the Regional Adlninistrator, and the
Regional Judicial Officer.

Dated:_....:../....:..Z-,--/c:...z--,-'l!-.lo:....'1-,-
~yA.?raham Ferdas I

y DIrector
Land and Chemicals Divi1sion
U.S. EPA Region 111
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Enclosures: A. Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22
B. WVUSTR, Parts 33-30-1 through 33-30-4.6
C. UST Penalty Guidance
D. Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rul~ 40 C.F.R. Part 19
E. Modifications to EPA Penalty Policies to Implement the Civil Monetary Penalty

Inflation Adjustment Rule (Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement
Act of 1996. Effective October 1. 2004 I

F. Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rul~ ~3 Federal Register 75340
(December 11,2008, effective January 12,20091')
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

L.C.W., Inc., d/b/a KWIK LUBE
1522 Third Avenue
Huntington, WV 25701

Date '~oyceA. 0

Sr. Assis t Regional Cbunsel
U.S. EPA - Region III I

Counsel for ComPlainan,
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